
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

February 1, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 
 
 

    

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Barbara Sowada 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policies (Remains under review/development, no request for action)  

1. Workplace Violence Prevention Policy  

2. Workplace Violence Prevention Program 

B. Finance and Audit Committee Charter (For Action)  Ed Tardoni 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Patient Safety Plan (For Review) Kara Jackson, Director of Quality 

Accreditation, Patient Safety, & Risk 

B. Credentials Committee Privilege Forms (For Action) Kerry Downs,  
Director of Medical Staff Services 

1. Nephrology 

2. APRN Psychiatry 

3. Reappointment Timeframe 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Taylor Jones 

B. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Bad Debt (For Action) 

2. January Committee Meeting Information (For Your Information) 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey  

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Barbara Sowada 

I. Joint Conference Committee Barbara Sowada 

  

1/147



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

February 1, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 
 
 

    

AGENDA 
 
 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

A. Consent Agenda (For Action) 

1. First Amendment to Agreement for Physician Professional Services (Emergency 
Department) 

 B.  Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Amendment to License Agreement 

2. Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between U of U and MHSC Cancer 
Center 

X. Education  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  MOAB Stevie Nosich, Environmental Safety Officer 

XI. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President  

XII. Good of the Order           Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/147



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/147



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

January 4, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

January 4, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order. She presented the Trustees, Ms. 

Richardson, Dr. Crofts, and Mr. Phillips with gifts for the new year and wished everyone an 

amazing 2023. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. 

Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Tardoni read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson shared a recent article in the local newspaper about Mr. Marlin Dillard who assists 

people at the front information desk. She said he is a wonderful ambassador for the Hospital and 

exemplifies our mission every day. Dr. Sowada referenced a front-page article about recent falls 

related to ice and said our community is glad our emergency department is here.   

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the December 7, 2022, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Mr. Tardoni second by Mr. Jones. Ms. Pendleton abstained, and the motion carried.  

 

  

4/147



 

 

Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Employee Policies 

 

Dr. Sowada said The Joint Commission is focusing on workplace violence. Following discussion, 

Ms. Richardson said we can take the information back to the Human Resources Committee for 

continued discussion. Mr. Kelsey requested highlighted changes when revisions are brought 

forward to the Board for review and approval. Dr. Sowada said it is important we get it right and 

she said we appreciate the work being done.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Finance and Audit Committee Charter 

 

Mr. Tardoni noted a minor change needed in the draft presented and said the charter will be 

returned to the Finance and Audit Committee for discussion.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson wished everyone a happy new year and presented an update on the strategic plan 

areas of patient experience, quality and safety, community and growth, workplace experience, and 

financial stewardship. Mr. Kelsey said he would like to receive information on Medicaid expansion 

and how it may impact the Hospital.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni thanked staff for getting the financial information out even though the Committee did 

not meet in December.   

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $930,918.65 as presented was made 

by Mr. Tardoni; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

Dr. Sowada referenced the goals graphs and noted the improved days of cash on hand data.  

5/147



 

 

Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Executive Director for the Foundation, provided an update on the Red Tie 

Gala. She said she and Ms. Richardson are on the agenda for the next Sweetwater Board of County 

Commissioners meeting to review the Wyoming State Land and Investment Board approval for 

the Hospital’s lab remodel grant submission. She provided an update on other grants the Hospital 

has received.   

 

Compliance Committee, Governance Committee, Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Compliance, Governance, and Joint Conference Committees did not meet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee met and topics are discussed during executive session. 

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the iProtean agreement and said she feels this education for the Board 

has been really good. She said we feel we will be with them for more than one year and there is a 

significant discount if we renew for three years. Ms. Richardson said we want to involve the 

Foundation Board so the agreement includes additional licenses. Dr. Sowada said she will be on a 

call with iProtean soon and asked everyone for input on content and useful topics moving forward. 

She said iProtean is good at listening and responding. Ms. Pendleton and Mr. Jones said they are 

interested in the usage to warrant the expense. Ms. Richardson said she feels it is worthwhile, good 

Board education, and utilized. The motion to approve the iProtean agreement as presented was 

made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts said the Medical Executive Committee met the previous week. She encouraged 

everyone to continually wash your hands and stay home if you are sick. She said it has been very 

busy and we are seeing a big increase in RSV and flu cases. Dr. Sowada asked Dr. Crofts to please 

extend the Board’s appreciation to the Medical Staff.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Dr. Sowada said M.O.A.B. information will be presented at the February meeting. Mr. Tardoni 

distributed information to the Trustees and said that could be considered board education.  

 

Mr. Tardoni said we have helped many patients out with our navigation and care transition 

services. He asked us to look at getting a group of people together to work on issues surrounding 

prescriptions, costs associated with them, and submitting or automating them in some way to make 

6/147



 

 

Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

the process better. He said between the pharmacy, physicians, and computer people, maybe we 

can give people some aid. Dr. Crofts said she feels his frustration and outlined how she tries to 

help in the process. Ms. Richardson introduced Ms. Melida Marin, Lead Patient Financial 

Navigator, and said she and her department have done some really great things. Mr. Ron Cheese, 

Director of Patient Financial Services, said the department goal was raised by 500% this year and 

this month they went over $1M in savings to the patients and the Hospital. Mr. Cheese said we are 

working with Cerner to look into the prescription piece and will look at opportunities to see how 

we can help.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Jones. Motion 

carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:03 p.m., the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Ms. 

Pendleton; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the list of clinical privileges and granting appointments to the Medical Staff 

as reviewed in executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Jones. Motion 

carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical 

Privileges and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from December 13, 2022 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

• Dr. Mark Uhlman, Urology 

2. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

• Dr. Jason Kalan, Pediatrics 

• Dr. Holden Wagstaff, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

• Dr. Augusto Jamias, General Surgery 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

• Dr. Nathan Blue, Maternal/Fetal Medicine (U of U) 

• Dr. Edward Kimball, Tele ICU (U of U) 

• Dr. Lucy Dana DeWitt, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

• Dr. Muhammad Chauhan, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

• Dr. Jonathon Lee, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 

The motion to approve the contract presented by the CEO and authorize the CEO to sign the 

contract as discussed in executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried. 

 

7/147



 

 

Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:04 p.m.   

      

 

         

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

8/147



Finance & Audit Page 1  

Board Charter for Finance & Audit Committee 
 

 
Category: Finance and Audit Committee 
Title: Finance and Audit Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: 2023, 2020 

 
 

Purpose 
 

The purpose of the Finance and Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Trustees 
(Board) in its fiduciary and oversight duties as set forth below. 
 

Authority 
  The committee has no expressed or implied power or authority. 

 

Responsibilities 
 
In fulfilling its charge, the Finance and Audit Committee is responsible for the 
following activities and functions: 

 Reviews, monthly, the financial status of the hospital and reports to the Board. 

 Reviews the fiscal year operating and capital budgets of the hospital prepared by Senior 
Leadership; makes recommendations to the Board regarding approval of said budgets. 

 Monitors the overall financial performance and risk of the hospital in light of approved 
budgets, long term trends, and industry standards. 

 Reviews on a regular basis hospital financial statements. 

 Reviews and recommends to Board all Capital purchases in excess of the CEO’s approval 

limit. 
 Recommends to the Board policies designed to strengthen the financial health of the 

hospital and clinics. 

 Recommends to the Board key financial objectives to be established and monitored. 

 Reviews hospital investments; makes recommendations to Senior Leadership as 
deemed desirable. 

 Monitors the hospital’s debt obligations; reviews borrowing initiatives proposed by 
Senior Leadership; makes recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary. 

 Reviews the Board’s policy regarding financial assistance for the poor and uninsured, in 
compliance with State statute 18-8-106. 

 Provides oversight over external auditing matters by: 
o Reviews the Board’s external auditing policy; recommends changes if deemed 

necessary. 

Board of Trustees Orientation Resource Handbook 

9/147



Finance & Audit Page 2  

o Recommends to the Board external auditors after reviewing the composition of 
the audit team, proposed compensation, and other relevant matters. 

o May meet annually with the external auditors separate from Hospital 
management to review the annual audit and associated management letter. 

o Reviews audit findings and recommends to the Board any action plans that 
should be taken to strengthen internal controls and to otherwise improve the 
hospital’s accounting and management practices. 

o Makes other related recommendations to the Board associated with the auditing 
function. 

Composition 

The Finance and Audit Committee consists of two (2) members of the Board, including the 
Board Treasurer, who functions as Chair, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and 
Controller serve as voting members of the committee. The Chief Nursing Officer, Chief 
Clinical Officer, Director of Patient Financial Services, Director of Information Technology, 
Director of Materials Management serve as non-voting members.  Two (2) physicians, as 
appointed by the Board President, serve as non-voting members of the committee, and may 
attend as available. 

Meeting Schedule 
Monthly; additional meetings may be called by the Committee Chair in consultation with the 
Chief Executive Officer, or as needed. 

Reports: 

The committee will receive and review the following reports, and provide the Board with an 
executive summary: 

• For Board approval: 
 Investment reports, as necessary 
 Bad Debt report 
 Annual operating and capital budget 
 Annual financial audit report and management letter 

• For informational purpose: 
 Financial statements 
 Key financial ratios 
 Key operating benchmarks 
 Payer trend reports 
 Quarterly bond covenant compliance letter 
 Annual Standard & Poor’s credit rating review 
 Chargemaster review summary every three years 

Note: As used herein, the term “hospital” includes the “clinics” when such 
inclusion is appropriate. 

 

10/147



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 12325926 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

General - 
Housewide 

Reg. 
Standards 

APR 09.01.01,
APR 09.02.01,
TJC 
EC.04.01.01,
TJC 
IC.01.03.01,
TJC 
LD.02.01.01,
TJC 
LD.03.01.01,
TJC 
LD.03.02.01,
TJC 
LD.03.03.01,
TJC 
LD.03.04.01,
TJC 
LD.03.05.01,
TJC 
LD.03.07.01,
TJC 
LD.03.09.01,
TJC 
LD.04.01.01,
TJC 
LD.04.01.05,
TJC 
LD.04.01.10,
TJC 
MM.07.01.03,
TJC 
MM.08.01.01,
TJC 
MS.09.01.01,
TJC 
NR.02.01.01,
TJC 
PI.01.01.01,
TJC 
PI.02.01.01,
TJC 
PI.03.01.01,
TJC RI 
02.01.01, TJC 

Patient Safety Plan 

Introduction 

Purpose 

Scope 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is committed to providing compassionate, high-quality 
care with a strong culture of safety for the best patient outcomes. Our objective is to support a culture of 
safety for our patients and staff, as well as to support an unrelenting commitment to safety and to do no 
harm. This culture allows our organization to consistently identify opportunities to improve performance 
and safety, while maintaining a commitment to responsible stewardship of resources by aligning with 
MHSC's mission, vision, values, and strategic objectives. The Patient Safety Plan cultivates an 
organization-wide approach and provides a coordinated, collaborative effort to patient safety. 

MHSC strives for staff to feel supported, safe and empowered in speaking up about errors, Good 
Catches/near misses, and related opportunities for improvement. The Patient Safety Plan provides 
guidelines for collecting, analyzing, and using data to identify, address, and monitor performance to 
continually improve the quality and safety of care provided by the hospital, please see the Performance 
Improvement and Patient Safety Plan for more details. 

The Patient Safety Plan provides a systematic, organization wide program that minimizes hazards and 
patient harm by improving processes of care. The purpose of MHSC’s Patient Safety Plan is to build a 
framework for the delivery of safe care, perpetuate a culture of safety, improve patient safety and reduce 
risk to patients by reducing variability in care processes, increase reporting of occurrences, and reduce 
preventable adverse events. 

The Patient Safety Plan is organization wide and encompasses patients, visitors, volunteers, medical 
staff, and staff. The plan integrates all services and departments impacting patient care including 
contracted services. The plan addresses maintenance and improvement of patient safety in all 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 10

11/147



DRAFT

Objectives 
I. To promote patient safety through effective management of identified risks and prevention of 

adverse events 

II. To reduce the opportunity for harm and improve safety mechanisms and processes 

III. To encourage reporting of errors, occurrences, and risks to patient safety without judgment or 
placement of blame 

IV. To collect and analyze data to ensure proper prioritization of process improvements 

V. To identify risk through trending of confidential patient safety occurrence information from 
individual event reports and aggregate data reports 

VI. To investigate and analyze occurrences with a focus on process and system improvements to 
reduce risk 

VII. To integrate patient safety priorities into the design and redesign of all relevant organizational 
processes, functions, and services 

VIII. To provide open communication regarding patient safety risks, events, and system-based 
improvements 

IX. To facilitate organizational learning about patient safety occurrences 

X. To incorporate recognition of patient safety as an integral job responsibility 

XI. To use education as a key strategy for prevention of patient safety issues based on needs 
specific to the organization 

XII. To involve patients in decisions about their health care and promote open communication with 
patients and families about medical errors that occur 

XIII. To identify at least one high-risk patient safety process selected at a minimum of every 18 
months for proactive risk assessment. The following may be considered, but not limited to, 
when selecting a proactive risk assessment: 

A. The Joint Commission Sentinel Event alerts 

B. Core Measure performance data 

C. Occurrence reporting information 

D. Information from external sources: state, federal and current literature 

E. National Patient Safety Goals 

XIV. To support initiatives that promote person-centered care and involvement 

XV. To identify patient perception of safety issues using patient satisfaction survey data 

XVI. To regularly evaluate staffs' perception of the organizational culture of safety using a valid and 
reliable survey tool, and to implement improvements identified from survey results 

departments throughout the organization. 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 10

12/147



DRAFT

Definitions 

Organization and Accountability 

I. Hold CEO accountable for promoting and modeling behaviors consistent with a Just Culture, 
as well as overseeing actions to improve patient safety throughout the organization 

II. Review and approve Patient Safety Plan annually 

III. Review annual written report provided by Patient Safety Committee 

Adverse event: An occurrence with an unplanned, unexplained negative event that reaches the patient 
and results in no harm, harm (minimal to severe), or death 

Good Catch/ near miss: An event that could have caused harm, but was prevented from reaching the 
patient 

Hazard: A potential source of harm or adverse effect 

Just Culture: A value supported system of accountability that allows the individual to report adverse 
events, Good Catches, and hazards in an atmosphere of trust. See also Just Culture 

Occurrence: Any happening that is not consistent with routine operation of the facility. See also 
Occurrence Reporting 

Patient harm: Unintended physical or psychological injury or damage resulting from or contributed to by 
medical care that requires additional monitoring, treatment, or hospitalization, or that results in death 

Patient safety: The prevention of errors and adverse effects to patients that are associated with health 
care 

Patient safety event: An event, occurrence, or condition that could have resulted or did result in harm to a 
patient 

Performance improvement: The systematic process of detecting and analyzing performance problems, 
designing and developing interventions to address the problems, implementing the interventions, 
evaluating the results, and sustaining improvement 

Safety culture: The product of individual and group beliefs, values, attitudes, perceptions, competencies, 
and patterns of behavior that determine the organization's commitment to quality and patient safety 

For further definitions please refer to these documents: Occurrence Reporting, Adverse Drug 
Reactions, Medication Errors, Fall Prevention Program, Just Culture, Disclosure of Adverse Medical 
Event, Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Plan, and Sentinel Event Policy 

MHSC recognizes that all staff have an impact on patient safety. All staff are expected to participate in 
patient safety activities and to offer suggestions and recommendations for improvement through their 
involvement in occurrence reports, patient safety initiatives, department meetings, and other formal and 
informal means. 

Board of Trustees 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 10

13/147



DRAFT

IV. Oversee that quality and safety are at the core of the organization's mission 

V. Oversee that quality and safety values are embedded in guiding the organization's strategic 
plan 

VI. Oversee that adequate resources (staff, time, information systems, and training) are allocated 
to data collection and performance improvement 

VII. Oversee the Hospital's ongoing monitoring, maintenance, and improvement efforts for safe, 
high quality, and efficient medical care 

I. Promote and model behaviors consistent with a Just Culture, as well as oversee actions to 
improve patient safety throughout the organization 

II. Create and maintain a culture of safety at the hospital that supports effective implementation 
of the Patient Safety Plan 

III. Provide the resources necessary for the effective implementation of the Patient Safety Plan 

IV. Define, in writing, the following terms: 

A. Occurrence 

B. Patient safety event 

C. Adverse events 

D. Adverse drug events 

E. Medication errors 

F. Sentinel events 

G. Good Catch/ near miss 

V. Disseminate above definitions throughout the organization 

VI. Set expectations for improvement work based on results from the Culture of Safety survey and 
additional safety data 

VII. Prioritize and ensure that adequate resources (staff, time, information systems, and training) 
are allocated to data collection and performance improvement 

VIII. Participate in regular safety rounds 

IX. Encourage communication of ongoing efforts to improve safety in the organization 

I. Create and maintain a culture of safety that supports effective implementation of the Patient 
Safety Plan 

II. Establish that safety occurrences are not commonly the result of individual misconduct, but 
rather a failure of the systems or processes of the organization, see the Just Culture policy for 
more information 

III. Inform staff of patient safety initiatives 

IV. Encourage participation in patient safety principles and initiatives, performance improvement, 

Senior Leadership Team 

Leadership Team 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 10

14/147



DRAFT

and problem-solving processes 

V. Participate in the collection and analysis of relevant departmental data 

VI. Ensure completion of performance improvements and action plans 

VII. Foster a climate of continuous improvement through measurement, data 
analysis, identification, and implementation of changes needed to improve safety of care and 
ensure sustainment 

VIII. Provide the foundation for an environment that supports Just Culture and patient safety by: 

A. Acknowledging that most safety events are process failures and monitoring 
processes to mitigate the risk of patient harm 

B. Promoting learning 

C. Motivating staff to uphold a fair and Just Culture of safety 

D. Providing a transparent environment in which quality measures and patient harms 
are freely shared with staff 

E. Modeling professional behavior by adopting and promoting the MHSC Code of 
Conduct that defines acceptable behavior as well as behaviors that undermine a 
culture of safety 

F. Addressing intimidating behavior that undermines the safety culture so as not to 
inhibit others from reporting safety concerns 

G. Educating staff and holding them accountable for professional behavior 

IX. When a patient safety event occurs, provide resources and mechanisms for support as 
necessary following a patient safety event 

A. Examples include but are not limited to, debriefing, counseling, and resources 
provided through the employee assistance program 

X. Disseminate lessons learned from safety events 

I. Provide effective mechanisms to measure, assess, and improve the quality and 
appropriateness of patient care, and the clinical performance of all individuals with delineated 
clinical privileges, accomplished through Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluations (OPPE), 
Focused Professional Practice Evaluations (FPPE), and Peer Review Process (refer to 
Professional Practice Review Process – Medical Staff Peer Review) 

II. Know and understand the culture of safety, the role of occurrence reporting in the culture of 
safety, and their responsibilities under the culture of safety 

III. Report occurrences (both events that do and do not reach the patient, and do or do not cause 
harm to the patient) immediately, and document events through the hospital's occurrence 
reporting platform 

IV. Participate in any investigative activities including but not limited to the following: 

A. Describe, in writing, the situation and event 

B. Any clinical data related to the event (for example, patient’s vital signs, medication 

Medical Staff 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 10

15/147



DRAFT

name and dosage, and so on) 
Identify any other staff members who were present during the event 

C. Answer questions from the individual(s) investigating the event 

D. Collaborate with Quality department, department directors and others as 
appropriate, to design and implement corrective actions and monitor the results 

V. Provide the foundation for an environment that supports a Just Culture and patient safety by: 

A. Modeling professional behavior by adopting and promoting the Medical Staff Code 
of Conduct that defines acceptable behavior as well as behaviors that undermine a 
culture of safety. 

B. Addressing intimidating behavior that undermines the safety culture so as not to 
inhibit others from reporting safety concerns 

VI. Act upon identified areas for improvement 

I. Facilitate education about patient safety principles to the Board of Trustees 

II. Coordinate and provide patient safety education at new employee orientation and to staff 
annually 

III. Collaborate with department directors to determine whether a reported patient safety event is 
likely to be repeated 

IV. Conduct Root Cause Analyses - see Sentinel Event Policy for more information 

V. Serve as a resource for performance improvement, patient safety, patient experience, and 
regulatory information 

VI. Educate MHSC staff about the performance improvement process, patient safety, and patient 
experience 

VII. Support staff, including Medical Staff, Leadership, and project leaders in the development and 
implementation of performance improvement activities, including team building and data 
analysis 

I. Know and understand the organizational definitions of the following terms, as provided by 
leadership: 

A. Occurrence 

B. Patient safety event 

C. Adverse events 

D. Adverse drug events 

Quality Department 

Patient Safety Committee 

The Patient Safety Committee is a standing interdisciplinary group that manages the Patient Safety Plan 
through a systematic, coordinated, continuous approach. Please see the Patient Safety Committee 
Charter for details on the responsibilities of the Patient Safety Committee (attached). 

Staff and Volunteers 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 10

16/147



DRAFT

E. Medication errors 

F. Sentinel events 

G. Good Catch/near miss 

II. Comply with all hospital policies and procedures related to patient safety that apply to their 
position and job duties 

III. Know and understand the culture of safety, the role of occurrence reporting in the culture of 
safety, and their responsibilities under the culture of safety 

IV. Improve the culture of safety and accountability by employing a “see something, say 
something, do something” approach 

V. Report occurrences (both events that do and do not reach the patient, and do or do not cause 
harm to the patient) to their department manager or supervisor immediately, and document 
events through the hospital's occurrence reporting platform 

VI. Participate in any investigative activities including but not limited to the following: 

A. Describe, in writing, the situation and event 

B. Any clinical data related to the event (for example, patient’s vital signs, medication 
name and dosage, and so on) 

C. Identify any other staff members who were present during the event 

D. Answer questions from the individual(s) investigating the event 

E. Collaborate with Quality department, department directors and others as 
appropriate, to design and implement corrective actions and monitor the results 

VII. Participate in data collection and analysis activities as well as performance improvement 
activities 

VIII. Identify and utilize approaches for improving processes and outcomes to continuously 
improve the quality and safety of patient care 

IX. Participate in improvement activities related to the Patient Safety Plan 

X. Constantly hold patient safety at the forefront and continue to advocate for changes where 
opportunities are identified 

XI. Encourage patients and their family members to speak up when they observe or suspect a 
patient safety event or if they have questions about the safety of a system or process 

XII. For further information, please refer to the following policies: Occurrence Reporting, Adverse 
Drug Reactions, Medication Errors, Fall Prevention Program, Just Culture, Disclosure of 
Adverse Medical Event, and Sentinel Event Policy 

Data 
The Patient Safety Committee will monitor data that is further specified and defined in the PIPS Plan and 
Patient Safety Committee Charter. Information from data analysis is used to make changes that improve 
performance and patient safety and reduce the risk of adverse and sentinel events. Please see Patient 
Safety Committee Charter "Data" heading for details. 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 10

17/147



DRAFT

Communication 

I. Quality Committee of the Board 

II. PIPS Committee 

III. Patient Safety Committee 

A. Monthly Patient Safety Newsletters 

B. Monthly Key Takeaway Information 

IV. Leadership meetings 

V. Medical Staff meetings 

VI. Staff meetings 

VII. Department white boards, electronic communication, patient safety rounding, and 
communication books 

Confidentiality 
I. 

II. All quality and patient safety data, materials, and information are private and confidential, shall 
be considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, and as such is 
protected by state and federal health care quality statutes. 

III. Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in 
keeping with hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of 
quality and patient safety work. 

IV. Information, data results, reports and minutes generated by all quality management activities 
will be handled in a manner ensuring strict confidentiality 

V. Confidential information may include but is not limited to: Medical Staff committee minutes, 
organizational quality improvement committee minutes, electronic data gathering and 
reporting, and incident/occurrence reporting 

VI. Quality improvement activities will occur in ways that preserve confidentiality of information 
consistent with policy and established law 

VII. The Joint Commission is an independent contractor. Any event reported to The Joint 
Commission is performed under the auspice of the Quality Committee. 

REFERENCES 

Patient safety initiatives, lessons learned, and patient safety improvement work will be communicated as 
appropriate throughout the organization. Communication will occur through: 

WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management function for health care facilities; confidentiality; 
immunity; whistle blowing; peer 

Quality and Patient Safety. (2019, April 1). Retrieved June 15, 2020, from http://www.ahrq.gov/qual/
patientsafetyculture/ 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 10

18/147



DRAFT
Attachments 

Patient Safety Committee Charter.docx 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Board of Trustees Taylor Jones: Board Trustee 06/2022 

Suzan Campbell: General Legal 
Counsel 

05/2022 

Irene Richardson: CEO 05/2022 

Tami Love: CFO 04/2022 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical 
Officer 

04/2022 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement, Develop a Culture of Safety. (2019) http://www.ihi.org/IHI/Topics/
PatientSafety/SafetyGeneral/Changes/Develop+a+Culture+of+S afety.htm 

Griffin FA, Resar RK. IHI Global Trigger Tool for Measuring Adverse Events (Second Edition). IHI Innovation 
Series white paper. Cambridge, Massachusetts: Institute for Healthcare Improvement; 2009. 

The Joint Commission, Patient Safety Chapters. (2021)  CAMH_00_TOC (jointcommission.org) 

Valley View Medical Center. (2021) Quality and Patient Safety Plan. Unpublished internal document 

PolicySource Hospital and Critical Access Hospital. (2021) System or Process Failure Response 
Policy. Joint Commission Resources (skyprepapp.com) 

Cleveland Clinic Indian River Hospital. (2021) Patient Safety Plan. Unpublished internal document 

Main Line Health. (2019) Patient Safety Plan. Unpublished internal document 

St. Johns Health. (2019) Patient Safety Program. Unpublished internal document 

LRGHealthcare. (August, 2019). Patient Safety Improvement Plan. Unpublished internal document 

Reviewed and Approved: 
Patient Safety Committee: October 27th, 2022 
Medical Executive Committee: November 29th, 2022 
Quality Committee of the Board: January 18th, 2023 
Board of Trustees: 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 10

19/147



DRAFT

Ann Clevenger: CNO 04/2022 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12325926/.
Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 10 of 10

20/147



Confidential – Quality Materials 

 

Patient Safety Committee Charter 

 

Statement of Purpose 
 
The purpose of this committee is to work to reduce any and all harm to the patients, staff, and 
facility through a multidisciplinary proactive approach. This will be performed using an evidence-
based comprehensive approach to safety/risk, using assessments, systemic reviews, event 
reports and staff/patient testimonials. The committee will work to create an environment to 
support and encourage the “see something, say something, do something” approach to bring 
awareness and focus to patient safety issues. 
 
Type of Committee 

A. Standing committee to meet regularly for a specified purpose. 
B. Meeting Schedule 

a. The committee shall meet monthly or as needed for special work projects  
 
Membership 

A. The committee shall consist of a multidisciplinary and organization-wide approach that 
provides a coordinated and collaborative effort to patient safety 

B. Members shall include representatives from the following departments: 
1. Cardiopulmonary 
2. Clinical Informatics 
3. Environmental Services  
4. Medical Imaging  
5. Laboratory 
6. Pharmacy 
7. Quality 
8. Rehabilitation Services 
9. Emergency Department  
10. Women’s Health   
11. Surgical Services  
12. Medical Surgical & ICU 
13. Dialysis 
14. Compliance 
15. Infection Prevention  
16. Cancer Center  
17. Clinic   
18. Facilities  
19. Frontline staff 

C. Representatives for other departments may be asked to attend the meeting as an ad-hoc 
member 

 

21/147



Confidential – Quality Materials 

 

Chairperson 
A. Representative from Quality, Accreditation, Risk, Patient Safety Department 

 
Reporting 

A. The committee may review and receive reports from various work groups 
B. Report high level patient safety summary to Performance Improvement and Patient 

Safety (PIPS) Committee quarterly 
C. Report results of Failure Mode Effects Analysis (FMEA) and Root Cause Analysis (RCA) to 

PIPS and Quality Committee of the Board as they occur 
D. Review and modify the objectives, scope, organization, and effectiveness of the Patient 

Safety Plan at least annually and revise as necessary. Report evaluation to PIPS 
Committee and Quality Committee of the Board 

Data 
A. Critical Results and Values (Cardiopulmonary, Radiology, and Laboratory)  
B. Moderate & Deep Sedation 
C. Pressure Ulcer  
D. Staffing Adequacy 
E. Clinical Alarm Safety  
F. Occurrence Report trends (Patient safety events, adverse events, sentinel events, good 

catches, other events as necessary or by request from leadership) 
G. Restraint and Seclusion 
H. Suicide Prevention 
I. Falls 
J. Patient perception of safety and quality of care (HCAHPS) 
K. Culture of Safety Survey  
L. AHRQ Patient Safety Indicators (PSI)  
M. Workplace Violence  
N. Adverse drug events and medication errors are collected, aggregated, and improved 

upon by Safe Medication Practice Team 
 

Activities, Duties, Responsibilities 
A. Foster and support a positive safety culture across MHSC 
B. Reinforce a non-punitive environment for reporting errors to increase the willingness to 

report 
C. Collaborate with providers and other support staff to effectively measure, assess, and 

improve patient safety 
1. Monitor, analyze, and collaborate on strategic goals, national patient safety 

initiatives, and National Patient Safety Goals 
2. Review and analyze event trends reported through the hospital's occurrence 

reporting platform, and identify opportunities for improvement 
3. Actively participate in patient safety event investigation or designate a group for 

the action item 
D. Administer a Culture of Safety Survey biennially to assess potential areas of concern 

1. Prioritize action items based on survey results 

22/147



Confidential – Quality Materials 

 

2. Develop action plans based on prioritization of survey results and assist with 
implementation efforts 

E. Appoint and oversee subcommittees or task forces as needed 
F. Review the progress of improvements monthly 
G. Review and disseminate Patient Safety policies 
H. Prioritize, communicate, and serve as a resource for patient safety initiatives 
I. Reinforce culture of safety during rounding activities 
J. Coordinate patient safety education programs 
K. Environment of care specific findings will be addressed by the Environment of Care 

Committee 
L. Share lessons learned from safety events 

 
Policies/Procedures 

A. Patient Safety Plan 
B. Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan 

 
Regulatory Bodies 
It is the intent of this committee to follow the recommendations of the following agencies, to 
the best of our ability: 

A. CDC – Centers for Disease Control 
B. AHRQ – Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality 
C. IHI – Institute for Healthcare Improvement 
D. The Joint Commission 
E. OSHA – Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
F. ISMP – Institute for Safe Medication Practice 
G. Other applicable State and Federal agencies 

 

23/147



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 1 

 

Rev: 01/2023 

Delineation of Privileges 

NEPHROLOGY PRIVILEGES 

 

 Initial appointment    Reappointment    Modification of Privileges 

Applicant 

Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed adequate by 

the hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any 

doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 

To be eligible to request privileges in Nephrology, a practitioner must meet the following minimum threshold criteria: 

 

LICENSURE / 

PROFESSIONAL 

LIABILITY 

INSURANCE 

MD or DO 

Licensed to practice medicine in the State of Wyoming 

Current Wyoming designated DEA Registration and current Wyoming Controlled Substance Registration 

Professional liability insurance in the amounts of at least: Per Claim: $1,000,000.00 Aggregate: 

$3,000,000.00 

EDUCATION / 

TRAINING 

Completion of an approved residency in Internal Medicine by the Accreditation Council for Graduate 

Medical Education (ACGME) or American Osteopathic Association (AOA), and successful completion 

of an accredited fellowship in nephrology.  

CERTIFICATION Certification in nephrology by the applicable Internal Medicine board for any clinical privileges for 

which applicant has applied, or be eligible for certification by such board.  Once physician is board 

certified, Maintenance of Board Certification is required. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(INITIAL) 

Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate provision of inpatient or consultative 

services, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for at least 24 patients during the past 12 months 

or demonstrate successful completion of an ACGME- or AOA-accredited residency, clinical fellowship, 

or research in a clinical setting within the past 12 months. 

Applicants for initial appointment may be requested to provide documentation of the number and types 

of hospital cases during the past 24 months.  Applicants have the burden of producing information 

deemed adequate by the Hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, and other qualifications 

and for resolving any doubts. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(REAPPOINTMENT) 

To be eligible to renew core privileges in Nephrology, the applicant must meet the following 

maintenance of privilege criteria: Current demonstrated competence and an adequate volume of 

experience with acceptable results, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 24 months 

based on results of ongoing professional practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current physical 

and mental ability to perform privileges requested is required of all applicants for renewal of privileges. 

 

FPPE FPPE criteria will be assigned by the Department Chair during the approval process. 

OTHER 

REQUIREMENTS 
 Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the 

appropriate equipment, license, beds, staff, and other support required to provide the services 

defined in this document. Site-specific services may be defined in hospital or department policy. 

 This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical 

privileges. The applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or 

accreditation requirements that the organization is obligated to meet.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24/147



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 2 

 

Rev: 01/2023 

 

Requested CHECK ALL PRIVILEGES/PROCEDURES YOU ARE REQUESTING Approved 

☐ Admit, evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to adult patients presenting with illnesses and 

disorders of the kidney, high blood pressure, fluid and mineral balance, and dialysis. [May provide care 

to patients in the intensive care setting in conformance with unit policies.]  Assess, stabilize, and 

determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with medical staff policy 

regarding emergency and consultative call services. 

☐ 

☐ Acute and chronic hemodialysis ☐ 

☐ Continuous renal replacement therapy ☐ 

☐ Medical management of the kidney transplant patient ☐ 

☐ Perform history and physical exam ☐ 

☐ Peritoneal dialysis ☐ 

☐ Perform outpatient preadmission and history and physical, order non-invasive outpatient diagnostic 

tests and services, visit patient in hospital, review medical records, consult with attending physician, 

and observe diagnostic or surgical procedures with the approval of the attending physician or surgeon.  

☐ 

 

 Administration of Sedation and Analgesia 
Must be requested separately. Contact Medical Staff Services for privilege form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25/147



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 3 

 

Rev: 01/2023 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF APPLICANT 

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated 

performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at Hospital, and I understand that: 

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules 

applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

b. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation 

my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 
 

Applicant’s Printed Name:      

 

Applicant’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

 

 

DEPARTMENT CHAIR REVIEW 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and make the following recommendations: 

 

☐ Recommend all privileges as requested 

 

☐ Recommend privileges with conditions/modifications (describe): 

 

 

 

☐ Do not recommend the following requested privileges (rationale for recommendation): 

 

 

 

☐ I assign ________________________________________ to complete the initial FPPE evaluations on this Practitioner. 

 

 

Department Chair’s Printed Name      

 

 

Department Chair’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

FOR MEDICAL STAFF OFFICE USE ONLY 

Credentials Committee approval Date:    

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date:    

Board of Trustees approval Date:    

 

Privileges Effective From: ____________________ To: ____________________ 
 

Date Form Approved by Specialty:   01/10/2023    

Date Form Approved by Department Chair:  01/10/2023      

Date Form Approved by Credentials Committee: 01/11/2023    

Date Form Approved by MEC:   01/24/2023    

Date Form Approved by Board of Trustees:       

26/147



 
 
 
 
 

Name:                          Page 1 

 

Outpatient Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner 

Rev: 1/2023 

 

Delineation of Privileges 
OUTPATIENT PSYCHIATRIC MENTAL HEALTH NURSE PRACTICTIONER 

 

 Initial appointment    Reappointment    Modification of Privileges 

Applicant: Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing 

information deemed adequate by the hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical 

activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 
To be eligible to request privileges as a Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner, the APRN meet the following minimum 

threshold criteria: 

 

LICENSURE / 

PROFESSIONAL 

LIABILITY 

INSURANCE 

 Current APRN Licensure in State of Wyoming  

 Current Wyoming designated DEA Registration and current Wyoming Controlled Substance 

Registration 

 Professional liability insurance in the amounts of; Per Claim: $1,000,000.00 Aggregate: 

$3,000,000.00 

EDUCATION / 

TRAINING 
 Completion of a Masters, post-masters, or doctorate from a Nurse Practitioer program accredited by 

the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CONE), the Accreditation Commission for 

Education in Nursing (ACEN), or the National League for Nursing Accrediting Commissions 

(NLNAC). 

CERTIFICATION  Current Certification by the American Nurse Credentialing Center (ANCC) or an equivalent 

nationally recognized body. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(INITIAL) 

 Demonstrated current competence and provision of care, treatment, or services for an adequate 

volume of patients in the past 12 months, or completion of masters/post master’s degree program in 

the past 12 months. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(REAPPOINTMENT) 

 Current demonstrated competence and an adequate volume of experience with acceptable results in 

the privileges requested for the past 24 months based on results of quality assessment/improvement 

activities and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform privileges requested is required of all 

applicants for renewal of privileges.  

FPPE  FPPE criteria will be assigned by the Department Chair during the approval process. 

OTHER 

REQUIREMENTS 

 Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the 

appropriate equipment, license, beds, staff, and other support required to provide the services 

defined in this document. Site-specific services may be defined in hospital or department policy. 

 This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical 

privileges. The applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or 

accreditation requirements that the organization is obligated to meet.  

SCOPE The PMHNP focuses on individuals across the lifespan (infancy through old age), families, and 

populations across the lifespan at risk for developing and/or having a diagnosis of psychiatric 

disorders or mental health problems. The PMHNP provides primary mental health care to 

patients seeking mental health services in a wide range of settings. Primary mental health care 

provided by the PMHNP involves relationship-based, continuous and comprehensive services, 

necessary for the promotion of optimal mental health, prevention, and treatment of psychiatric 

disorders and health maintenance. This includes assessment, diagnosis, and management of 

mental health and psychiatric disorders across the lifespan.” (WBON 2022). 
 

 

 

27/147



 
 
 
 
 

Name:                          Page 2 

 

Outpatient Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner 

Rev: 1/2023 

OUTPATIENT PSYCHIATRIC MENTAL HEALTH NURSE PRACTICTIONER 
Requested  Approved 

☐ Assess, evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to patients of all ages presenting with 

mental, behavioral, addictive, or emotional disorders, e.g., psychoses, depression, anxiety disorders, 

substance abuse disorders, developmental disabilities, sexual dysfunctions, and adjustment disorders. 

Privileges include providing consultation with providers in other fields regarding mental, behavioral, 

or emotional disorders, pharmacotherapy, psychotherapy, family therapy, behavior modification, 

consultation to the courts;as well as the ordering of diagnostic, laboratory tests, and prescribing 

medications.   

☐ 

☐ Conducts individual and group psychotherapy ☐ 

☐ Conducts preventive screening procedures based on age and history ☐ 

☐ Develops an age-appropriate treatment plan for mental health problems and psychiatric disorders 

based on biopsychosocial theories, evidence-based standards of care, and practice guidelines 
☐ 

☐ Develops patient education plan  ☐ 

☐ Formulates and records ongoing assessment of patient’s medical, physical, and psychosocial status ☐ 

☐ Identifies and prescribes non-pharmacological interventions ☐ 

☐ Identifies medical risks, health risks, and needs ☐ 

☐ Identifies symptoms of psychiatric illness and analyzes data to determine if psychiatric illness is 

present 
☐ 

☐ Implements the plan of care with modalities including patient education and case management as 

indicated, attends and participates in multidisciplinary treatment teams 
☐ 

☐ May serve in a liaison role with other health care providers, health care team members, and family 

members to facilitate communication to optimize patient recovery 
☐ 

☐ Manages acute and chronic psychiatric conditions in an outpatient setting ☐ 

☐ Obtains and documents relevant health and medical history ☐ 

☐ Orders and interprets diagnostic tests ☐ 

☐ Performs history and physical exam.  ☐ 

☐ Performs preventive health care counseling and instucts patients and/or families on treatement plans.  ☐ 

☐ Recognizes and appropriately responds to medical emergencies.  ☐ 

☐ Safely prescribes pharmacologic agents for patients with mental health problems and psychiatric 

disorders 
☐ 

☐ Treats acute psychiatric disorders and mental health problems ☐ 

☐ Treats chronic psychiatric disorders and mental health problems ☐ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28/147



 
 
 
 
 

Name:                          Page 3 

 

Outpatient Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner 

Rev: 1/2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF MENTORING PHYSICIAN 

As mentoring physician, I will mentor the below named Non-Physician provider (NPP), in accordance with 

state law, organizational policies, and the Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws 

and Rules and Regulations. By signing as the mentoring Physician, below, I acknowledge that: 

 I have reviewed the privilege request of the Non-Physician Provider and agree that the requested 

privileges are within the skill and scope of the Non-Physician Provider. 

 I agree to be readily available by electronic communication or provide an alternate to provide 

consultation when requested, and to intervene when necessary; 

 I agree to assist and/or intervene in the care of any patient when requested by the Non-Physician 

Provider. 

 I agree to mentor the below named individual while they see patients at Memorial Hospital of 

Sweetwater County Clinics.   

 I also agree to notify the Medical Staff Office when I am no longer mentoring this individual.  

 

                                                                      

Non-Physician Provider Signature    Printed Name    Date 

 

 

                                                                      

Supervising Physician Signature    Printed Name    Date 

 

 

                                                                      

Supervising Physician Signature    Printed Name    Date 

 

 

                                                                      

Supervising Physician Signature    Printed Name    Date 

Outpatient Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner privileges require mentorship from a physician with 

privileges at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County.   

 The purpose of this document is to set clear expectations regarding NPP mentorship and to ensure the Non-

Physician Provider is a successful member of the Medical Staff.  

 It is the responsibility of the Non-Physician Provider (NPP) to seek out guidance, education, and 

consultation from their mentoring Physician in accordance with state law, organizational policies, and the 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations.  

 The Administrative team will manage the Non-Physician Provider in terms of pay, vacation and CME 

approval, performance appraisals, and other employee benefits.  Under the guidance of the mentoring 

Physician, Administration will ensure that provider time, patient communication, scheduling, patient 

access, reception services, patient encounters, prescription processes, order and results processes, 

technology, revenue cycle, and other resources are properly managed.  

 When the Non-Physician Provider is exercising his/her clinical privileges they shall do so in close 

collaboration with the mentoring Physician, but the mentoring Physician need not be on-site while the 

Non-Physician Provider is providing services.  NPP’s being mentored shall regularly and frequently check 

in with the Physician Staff member regarding his/her treatment of patients, and outcomes.   

 

 

29/147



 
 
 
 
 

Name:                          Page 4 

 

Outpatient Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner 

Rev: 1/2023 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF APPLICANT 

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated 

performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at Hospital, and I understand that: 

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules 

applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

b. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation 

my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 
 

Applicant’s Printed Name:      

 

Applicant’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

DEPARTMENT CHAIR REVIEW 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and make the following recommendations: 

 

☐ Recommend all privileges as requested 

 

☐ Recommend privileges with conditions/modifications (describe): 

 

 

 

☐ Do not recommend the following requested privileges (rationale for recommendation): 

 

 

 

☒ I assign ________________________________________ to complete the initial FPPE evaluations on this 

Practitioner. 
 

 

Department Chair’s Printed Name      

 

 

Department Chair’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

FOR MEDICAL STAFF OFFICE USE ONLY 

Credentials Committee approval Date:    

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date:    

Board of Trustees approval Date:    

 

Privileges Effective From: ____________________ To: ____________________ 
 

Date Form Approved by Specialty:   01/11/2023    

Date Form Approved by Department Chair:  01/13/2023      

Date Approved by Credentials Committee:  01/11/2023    

Date Approved by MEC:    01/24/2023    

Date Approved by Board of Trustees:       

 

30/147



 
 
 
 
 

Name:                          Page 5 

 

Outpatient Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner 

Rev: 1/2023 

References: 

 

Wyoming Board of Nursing. (2022). APRN Scope of Practice Guidelines, Advisory Opinion. Retrieved from: APRN Scope of 
Practice.pdf - Google Drive 
 

The National Organization of Nurse Practitioner Faculties. (2013). Population-Focused Nurse Practitioner Competencies. Retrieved 

from: https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.nonpf.org/resource/resmgr/Competencies/CompilationPopFocusComps2013.pdf. 
 
 

 

31/147



January Quality Chair Report 
 
 
 
New business included accreditations which do not receive any sort of grade or score, it’s either 
pass or fail and both passed. 
 
We had a fairly lengthy and detailed conversation regarding the January Care Compare Refresh.  
Discussion included comparing MHSC to both Wyoming and also the national numbers. 
 
Discussion about Sepsis took place, control charts, star rating and the dashboard.   
 
 

32/147



Chairs Report 

Human Resources Committee Meeting – January 16, 2023 

Items to take note of - 

 In the packet is the employee count by department from 2017-2023.  It’s great information 

moving forward for budgeting and goal setting.   

For detailed information please see the reports and minutes of the meeting. 

Kandi Pendleton 

33/147



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft 
Monday – January  16, 2023 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Kandi Pendleton, Barbara Sowada 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Suzan Campbell, Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Tami Love, Kari Quickenden, Amy Lucy, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
Kandi called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The motion to approve the November meeting minutes as corrected was made by Barbara, second by 
Irene. Motion carried. Amber said she will make the correction to show Kandi was not in attendance and 
Barbara conducted the meeting. The motion to approve the December meeting minutes as presented 
was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion carried.   
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber provided the 2022 turnover data and reviewed highlights. Kandi asked if Human Resources has a 
goal around the numbers. Amber said our focus is on retention. We want to stay below the national 
hospital average for turnover. 
 
Open Positions 

 

Amy reported we have 54 open positions and has 6 offers on her desk so there is a lot of movement 
going on. Amber said we continue to see the number of open positions go down. 
 
Contract Staffing 
 
Amber said we currently have contract staff in ED, ICU, Lab, Respiratory, and Surgical Services. The 
report shows the total number of contract staff. Kandi noted the numbers are going down. Amber 
talked about recruitment activities including contingent offers to current students, recruitment events, 
and sponsorship opportunities. She said we want to grow our own and our efforts will not be limited to 
nursing. 
 
Employee Injury & Illness Reporting  
 
Amber reviewed the reports she sent to the Committee.  
 
  

34/147



 

Minutes of the January 16, 2023 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

Old Business 

Workplace Violence Policy: 
 
Suzan said she and Amber met with Ed Tardoni. She reviewed the changes in the update. Suzan said she 
will send out the original and what has changed with this current draft. The Committee discussed 
potential confusion and agreed we can always amend in the future as needed. The motion to send the 
policy to the Board for third reading and approval was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion 
carried.  
 
Workplace Violence Plan: 
 
Suzan reviewed the one change to the plan regarding leadership responsibilities. The motion to send the 
plan to the Board for approval was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion carried.  
 
New Business 
 
Staffing Levels Report: 
 
Irene reviewed the report and said it starts with 2017. The group agreed this is a good starting point. 
Kandi thanked Tami for putting this together following her request and requested the report be included 
in the February board meeting packet. 
 
Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting is scheduled Monday, February 20 at 3:00 p.m. 

35/147



36/147



37/147



38/147



39/147



40/147



41/147



42/147



43/147



44/147



45/147



46/147



47/147



48/147



49/147



50/147



51/147



52/147



53/147



54/147



55/147



56/147



57/147



58/147



59/147



60/147



61/147



62/147



63/147



64/147



F&A COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD   

January 2023 meeting 

Chair – Ed Tardoni 

 The Finance and Audit Committee met in Zoom format this month.  The CFO was excused all other 

members present. 

F&A DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual financial information is included in the Board Packet.  It was noted that the Clinics posted the 

largest revenue month and lowest monthly loss in its history.   Ron Cheese made a presentation of the 

goals, there relationship to the Cerner conversion, and the corrective efforts involved in recovery. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES  

There are no capital expenditures for consideration this month.  Staff recommendation remains to be a 

freeze except for emergency or regulatory requirement related efforts 

OTHER BUSINESS 

SLIP Grant Update.  The CEO reported that work is underway with the engineers on the lab expansion 

and staff has been looking at second story layouts.  It was also reported that the County Commission 

had approved application of the full $3,000,000 in county funds to the lab project.  The CEO also 

mentioned that there is word that other government funding may become available for other projects  

and staff is monitoring that situation. 

F&A Committee Charter.  The Committee had previously approved a change in the charter that made 

attendance by physician member to be at their discretion.  At this meeting a change was made relating 

to what expenditures would be reviewed by the Committee,  A change from expenditures greater than 

$25,000 to in excess of the CEO approval authority was approved to be sent to the Board for 

consideration. 

Double Coverage Discussion.  The CNO discussed the reasons for double coverage of nurses and how 

the system works.  Depending on the unit, double coverage may last from three to six months.  The 

reasons for that variation were explained. 

 

February Meeting 

The F&A Committee will meet by zoom at 1400 hours, Tuesday, February 28th. 

 

65/147



66/147



67/147



68/147



69/147



70/147



71/147



72/147



73/147



74/147



75/147



76/147



77/147



78/147



79/147



80/147



81/147



82/147



83/147



84/147



85/147



86/147



87/147



88/147



89/147



90/147



91/147



92/147



93/147



94/147



95/147



96/147



97/147



98/147



99/147



100/147



101/147



102/147



103/147



104/147



105/147



106/147



107/147



108/147



109/147



110/147



111/147



112/147



113/147



114/147



115/147



116/147



117/147



118/147



119/147



120/147



121/147



122/147



123/147



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…January Buildings and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  January 23, 2023 
 
Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room…Plan One Architects presented plans estimated to be 85% 
complete. A preliminary cost estimate was also presented. Various items associated with the 
plans were discussed. It was agreed that the Committee will discuss thoroughly this project, 
including an updated cost estimate, how the project fits into the priority list, funding, and how 
to proceed. By the February meeting, a cost estimate should be available based on more 
complete plans. 
 
Dr. Sulentich Office…the State inspection should occur the week of January 23rd. Apparently, 
the project is virtually completed and has gone well. 
 
Building Automation System…The HVAC system still needs to be balanced. There are the 
normal areas that are too hot or too cold. In a couple of months the system will be drained so 
some valves can be replaced. 
 
Bulk Oxygen/Landscaping Project…No work will be done now until warmer weather. Concern 
was expressed that the Hospital is using the only temporary tank Air Gas has. Staff was asked by 
Trustee Tardoni to look into options in the event something happens to this temporary tank. 
 
MOB Space Renovation…the renovated space is being used and no further work is planned in 
the area at this time. 
 
Lightning Arrest System…no proposal yet. 
 
Building and Grounds Annual Plan…Discussion occurred regarding using cost estimates in the  
planning document. It was agreed that the concept “Probable Cost Good Faith Estimate” would 
be used. 
 
Laboratory Project…Irene related that the Commissioners approved the $3,000,000 request for 
this project. Seemingly good support from the Commissioners. Conceptual design work is 
underway beginning with the second floor. 
 
Other…Irene reported that the Hospital has received a grant in the amount of $496,000 from 
the State for remodeling the Foundation/Lab area. Trustee Tardoni recommended that the staff 
look into the sewer issues in the area. 
 
For further details…please consult the minutes of the Committee meeting. 

124/147



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

January 17, 2023 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on January 17, 2023, 

at 3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Ed Tardoni – Trustee 

   Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Ms. Michele Schmidt, PlanOne Architects    

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni made a motion to approve the 

agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the December 20, 2022 meeting. Mr. 

Horan made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston presented the current maintenance metrics.  He said they are right on par, but he will 

be looking at the number of overdue work orders. He said they are staying close to the trend. 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Ms. Love shared the updated cost estimate from Plan/One Architects. Ms. Schmidt said they are 

waiting for the review from OHLS to see if any changes need to be made after their review.  Mr. 

Kelsey asked about any additional equipment that will be outside of this estimate.  Ms. Love will 

talk to Jonathan Beattie regarding the new hood or any other equipment need.  Mr. Tardoni pointed 

out an error on the elevation.  Mr. Johnston said this had already been addressed with the engineer.  

Mr.  Tardoni also asked about the type of chemotherapy we are mixing as he has concerns about 

the transport issues and duct size for powders versus liquids. Mr. Horan said we would discuss this 

with Mr. Beattie also. Mr. Kelsey recommends we wait until we have more complete design 

development before making a recommendation to move forward with this project.  Ms. Richardson 

agreed, and Ms. Schmidt said they should have closer to  100% design development by the 

February meeting. Mr. Kelsey said we will wait until next month to have the discussion regarding 

financial needs, timeline, and next steps. 

 

 Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Ms. Schmidt met with the contractor today and they are scheduled for State inspection next 

week.  They are down to finishes and everything is going well.  Ms. Richardson said she had not 

heard anything from Dr. Sulentich regarding the project. 

125/147



 

 

Minutes of the January 17, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Johnston said they are still trying to get the balancer here and are not sure if it is Harris or 

Vaughn’s doing the balancing.  Harris was here the last couple of weeks tweaking some trouble 

areas that are either too hot or too cold.  They will be back in late March or early April to drain the 

system so they can replace some valves on the radiant heat systems.  Mr. Kelsey asked if they have 

to wait to balance the system after the radiant heat is complete.  Mr. Johnston was unsure as the 

radiant heat would be primary and the new VAV’s would be secondary.    

 

Bulk Oxygen  

 

Mr. Johnston talked to Wylie Construction before the holidays and they agreed to hold off until 

warmer weather.  There is still concern with Air Gas as we will continue to use their only available 

temporary tank until the project gets going again.  

 

MOB Space Renovation  

 

Ms. Love said the Medical Staff Services department has moved into their new space in the former 

MOB conference room.  No other renovations are planned at this time. 

 

 

Tabled Projects  

 

Lightning Arrest System 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if we had received a proposal yet.  Mr. Horan said he has it on his 

calendar to call them at the end of the month. 

 

OB Shower Renovation  

 

Mr. Kelsey confirmed this project is still tabled for after the new year. 

 

Building and Grounds Annual Plan 

 

Mr. Kelsey talked about the language we will want to include in the multi-year plan: “probable 

cost good faith estimate”.  Mr. Horan said we will use this plan to prioritize the capital projects 

for FY2024 as we start looking at the new budget year.  He said we can start having that 

conversation at the next meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

126/147



 

 

Minutes of the January 17, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

New Business 

 

SLIB Laboratory Renovation 

 

Ms. Richardson reported we had a group attend the County Commissioner meeting this morning.  

We wanted to be transparent with the original allocation going to two projects and our request to 

have the whole $3 million go towards the Lab project.  They approved to still give us the full 

amount for our matching funds.  Mr. Kelsey asked what the next steps are for this project.  Ms. 

Love said we did have an initial meeting.  Plan/One will be meeting with the departments 

impacted to finalize the plans.  Ms. Schmidt said they are working on the conceptual design 

phase now and then will move into design development.  We need to get the second floor design 

completed first to see how the structure and mechanical affects the first floor.  They have sent a 

couple options for us to look at.  Mr.  Kelsey asked that we have a rough timeline for the project 

including when the project will go to the Board for approval. Mr. Tardoni asked if we can 

consider the parking area with this project as the patients do like the close proximity of the 

Foundation Laboratory now.   

 

Other 

 

 

Ms. Richardson reported we also received a grant of $496,000 from the State for remodeling the 

Foundation Lab area.  The grant is part of Provider Relief Funds for Capital Construction. Mr. 

Tardoni made some recommendations when looking at the sewar issues in that part of the 

building. Ms. Love said she would send the Committee Board members the information on that 

new grant and upload it to the Board portal.  We will add this as new business to the next 

meeting agenda. 

 

Mr. Tardoni asked about a backup plan for the bulk oxygen tank and the issue with the 

temporary tank.  Mr. Horan and Mr. Johnston will discuss, and we will add this to the agenda for 

next month.  

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, February 21, 2023.   

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 3:45 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

127/147



Chairs Report 

Compliance Committee Meeting – January 23, 2023 

 The 2023 compliance work plan will include an audit on Coding & Documentation.  Something 

that falls in line well with other goals the board has set. 

 With scheduling conflicts there will not be a compliance meeting in February. 

For detailed information please see the reports and minutes of the meeting. 

Kandi Pendleton 

128/147



 

Board Compliance Committee Meeting 

   Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

January 23rd, 2023 

 
  

Present via Zoom: Irene Richardson, CEO, Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, Kandi Pendleton, Trustee-
Chair, Barbara Sowada, MHSC Board President*, April Prado, Foundation & Compliance. 
Absent: Taylor Jones, Trustee. 
*It should be noted that Barbara Sowada was a sub for Taylor Jones. 

Minutes 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 am by Kandi Pendleton. 
Agenda 
The January agenda was approved as written, Irene made the motion and Barbara seconded it. Motion 
carried. 
Meeting Minutes 
The meeting minutes from the November 28th, 2022 were presented. Barbara made the motion to 
approve the minutes as written and Irene seconded. Motion carried.   

 

Old Business 
1. Cybersecurity Audit update. The committee received an updated copy of the draft audit via 

email in December 2022. Suzan reported that she had met with Terry and that a follow up 
meeting and final report been scheduled with the CISA team for this week and that April 
would be included in the meeting. April reported that the meeting was actually this morning 
and that she had attended. She further reported that CISA would have a final report to Terry 
in 7-10 business days. Suzan stated that the information related to this audit will be 
presented to this committee hopefully by the next meeting.   

New Business 
New Audits to begin after the Gala. 
Coding and Documentation. Suzan reported that this was chosen because we want to make sure that 
coding is being done properly and that education is consistent among the departments. She continued 
that there should be parameters for all of these things and we may find that we don’t have them. Kandi 
asked how we decide what is coded and billed. Irene answered that we use a “SOAP” note. 
SOAP=Subjective, Objective, Assessment, Plan. Irene emphasized how important it is that everything is 
accurate and noted. She added that this is not just for billing but includes any lawsuits or audits that 
may happen. The billing process is driven by the documentation and we need to make sure it is 
accurate. April added that documentation now uses “time with patient” for billing as well. The 
documentation and the actual time with the patient have to add up. Suzan added that we would be 
looking at all of these items as well as productivity. Barbara asked about productivity goals -how quickly 
is the turnaround, what are the benchmarks and how quick can we submit to insurance? Suzan 
answered yes and that all of this would be something that Irene, April and herself would sit down and 
discuss and come up with a timeline and benchmarks for the audits and then submit those to the 
committee for review before the audit started. Barbara also asked about Medicare fraud and upcoding. 

Barbara mentioned that Medicare is monitoring for upcoding and asked if we would also be 
looking at this area. Irene added that we would look at this area and noted that Clifton Larson had 
audited this previously and found that we were actually under-coding in the ER. She continued that that 
is why this audit will be so important. Barbara stated that she is glad that we are going to be doing this 
one and feels that it fits in with what we are doing in Quality and with Cerner.   

 

129/147



 

1. HIPAA Compliance During Registration Process. Suzan reported that with our change to the 
Cerner program, the patient does not receive physical forms to sign-it is all done on an IPad. 
She continued that this is something that we need to review to make sure that all the 
information is there for patients and that they are aware of what they are signing and can 
get a copy if they would like. She added that we need to review what the patient is seeing, 
what they are signing and the whole process in general. The committee questioned the 
timeline of these audits and Suzan stated that it would probably take 3 months for the 
coding and documentation one-just depending on what is found and how much information 
we have to gather and probably less time for the HIPAA audit. She continued that these 
were just guestimates and that a timeline would be established and updated as we go.  

 

Standing Items-Reports 
The “Standing Items” report was presented and Suzan reported specifically on the following items;  

a. Physician exclusions from OIG. Suzan included a report that we get monthly with all our 
physicians on it. She stated that this report lets us know if any provider is excluded from 
providing care to Medicare patients for whatever reason. We use this to make sure our 
providers have no exclusions.  

b. Red Flag Reporting. Suzan reported that we received one report on 01/13/2023 that was 
reported anonymously. No contact info or follow up information was given. She stated that 
it appeared to be a personnel issue and the report has been forwarded to HR. She continued 
that HR will go to the department for follow up and review. Irene asked how we feel about 
anonymous reporting. Suzan stated that the person reporting has to purposely try to stay 
anonymous because they are given several opportunities to leave some kind of contact 
information. She also added that this is new and it is taking some people time to catch on to 
how it works and what it is for. April replied that this type of reporting was meant to be 
anonymous, that it was a place for employees that didn’t feel comfortable reporting to a 
supervisor, to report. She also talked about “Just Culture” and how employees will report 
more if they see that we are taking these seriously and that we try to solve them the best 
we can. Barbara asked what exactly is Red Flag? Suzan answered that it is the system that 
replaced the old “Hotline” we had.  She continued that she and April looked at many 
different platforms that would allow employees to report via call and email, eventually 
choosing Red Flag. Barbara asked if this would allow for all reporting like Safety issues, 
OSHA, etc.? Suzan confirmed that this would allow for all types of reporting through out the 
hospital.  

c. HIPAA Monitoring/Fair Warning Report- Suzan reported that we are continuing to work with 
HR to get better with our process and it is getting better. She also explained that we will no 
longer be receiving reports from Fair Warning (our legacy system) and explained the 
difference between P2Sentinel and Synergy. April reported that we are still working out the 
kinks with P2Sentinel and hopefully, by year-end, their reporting will be more of what we 
want. She explained that it is currently more work to investigate the possible violations but 
it is getting easier. Suzan also reported on the open HIPAA cases and the closed ones from 
the previous meeting. Suzan asked if the new report for review, with added information was 
enough for the committee. Kandi stated that she liked the new report and that it gives her 
what she needs.  

 

Additional Discussion  
Kandi asked for any additional discussion. Suzan asked about the meeting next month as she will be out 
of town. After discussion it was decided that next months meeting will be canceled unless an emergency 

130/147



 

meeting is needed. Suzan will email any updates to the committee. Barbara added that a timeline and 
benchmarks will be needed for the upcoming audit-basically a lay out of what it will look like and what 
will be audited. Suzan stated that this would be done and presented to the committee.  
 

Next Meeting    

The next meeting will be on March 27th, 2023 @ 9:00am      

 

Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 9:44am 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
April Prado, Recording Secretary 

 

131/147



132/147



133/147



134/147



135/147



136/147



137/147



138/147



139/147



140/147



141/147



142/147



143/147



144/147



145/147



146/147



147/147


	Agenda - February 1 2023 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Finance and Audit Committee Charter
	Patient Safety Plan 2023 -Draft
	Patient Safety Committee Charter 2023
	Nephrology
	APRN Psychiatry
	Quality Committee
	Human Resource Chair Report 1.23 Kandi Pendleton
	Human Resources Minutes January 16 2023 Draft
	Human Resources Committee Meeting January 2023
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee
	January Committee Meeting Information
	Building and Grounds Committee ...Chair&apos;s Report...January 2023 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes January 17 2023 Draft Tami Love
	Compliance Chair Report 1.23 Kandi Pendleton
	Compliance Committee Meeting Minutes January 2023 April Prado
	1. First Amendment to Agreement for Physician Professional Services (Emergency Department)
	Amendment to License Agreement
	2. Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between U of U and MHSC Cancer Center

